PROCEEDINGS

A meeting of the Lancaster City Council was held in the Town Hall, Morecambe, at 6.00 p.m. on Wednesday, 25 January 2023, when the following Members were present:-

Joyce Pritchard (Mayor) Ross Hunter (Deputy Mayor)

Tony Anderson Paul Anderton

Fabiha Askari Richard Austen-Baker

Mandy Bannon Phillip Black
Gerry Blaikie Alan Biddulph
Victoria Boyd-Power Dave Brookes
Keith Budden Roger Cleet

Tim Dant Roger Dennison

Gina Dowding Kevin Frea
Andrew Gardiner Mike Greenall

Mel Guilding Tim Hamilton-Cox

Colin Hartley Tricia Heath
Caroline Jackson Mandy King
Geoff Knight Jack Lenox

Erica Lewis Sally Maddocks

Cary Matthews Abi Mills
Stuart Morris Jean Parr

Margaret Pattison Robert Redfern
Alistair Sinclair Paul Stubbins
Sandra Thornberry David Whitaker

Anne Whitehead John Wild

Jason Wood Peter Yates

Joanna Young

103 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Abbott Bryning, Jake Goodwin, June Greenwell, Joan Jackson, Debbie Jenkins, Sarah Knight, Faye Penny, Oliver Robinson, Luke Taylor, Malcolm Thomas and Sue Tyldesley.

The Mayor informed Councillors that a get well card was circulating for Councillor Bryning if they wished to sign and send their best wishes.

104 MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 14 December 2022 were signed by the Mayor as a correct record.

Councillor Guilding asked that it be recorded that she had not voted to agree the minutes, since she was absent from the December meeting.

105 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No declarations of interest were made.

106 ANNOUNCEMENTS - FORMER COUNCILLOR EVELYN ASHWORTH

The Mayor reported the sad death of former Councillor Evelyn Ashworth on 13 January 2023.

Mrs Ashworth was elected as a Councillor for the Torrisholme Ward of the City Council in 1999 and stood down in 2007.

Mrs Ashworth's funeral was held on Monday 23 January 2022.

Members stood in a minute's silence in her memory

107 ANNOUNCEMENTS - EDEN PROJECT MORECAMBE

The Mayor acknowledged the excellent news received in the past week about funding secured for the Eden Project Morecambe. Councillors joined her in looking forward to this exciting development coming to fruition.

The Mayor then explained that she would be re-ordering the agenda to take Item 9, the Budget and Policy Framework update item, at the end of the meeting, since there was an exempt appendix to the report which might have resulted in press and public being excluded for part of that item. Also, she reminded members that the setting of Council Tax was a "budget decision" as defined in legislation. It would require a recorded vote to be taken in line with the Council's Constitution.

Finally, following complaint about Members talking when others were speaking, the Mayor asked Councillors to be respectful to those who were speaking by remaining quiet until invited to speak themselves.

108 QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC UNDER COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 11

The Mayor advised that no questions had been received from the public in accordance with the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 11.

109 PETITIONS AND ADDRESSES

The Mayor welcomed Mrs Mary Breakall who had registered to speak to Council about the South Lancaster Growth Catalyst, in accordance with the Council's public participation scheme.

Mrs Breakall's speech had been circulated to Councillors in advance.

After Mrs Breakall had delivered her address, Councillor Dowding, the Cabinet Member for Planning and Place Making, thanked her. She then responded in detail to each of the points in Mrs Breakall's address.

The Mayor thanked Mrs Breakall for taking the time to come and speak at the Council meeting.

110 LEADER'S REPORT

The Leader presented her report updating Members on various issues since her last report to Council.

Councillor Gardiner moved that Council Procedure Rule 12 be suspended for this item of business. The proposition was seconded by Councillor Budden and was carried when put to the vote.

The Leader then responded to a number of questions from Councillors. During these questions, members of the public seated in the public gallery became disruptive. The Mayor warned them that, should they continue to shout out and loudly disrupt the meeting, they would be asked to leave. The shouting continued and the Mayor adjourned the meeting.

The meeting adjourned at 6.30pm and re-convened at 6.45pm when order had been restored.

Resolved:

- (1) That Council Procedure Rule 12 be suspended for the duration of the Leader's report item of business (Item 7).
- (2) That the Leader's report be noted.

111 MOTION ON NOTICE - RULES REGARDING MOTIONS ON NOTICE

The Mayor noted that there was a motion on notice on the agenda, which had been submitted by Councillor Austen-Baker. However neither of the seconders named on the notice were present at the meeting, therefore it would be carried over for debate at the next appropriate Council meeting.

112 INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL (Pages 7 - 17)

The Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP) submitted a report of their review of the

Councillors' Allowances Scheme for Council's consideration. The report was presented by the Chair of the Panel, Mr Ameer Hakim.

Mr Hakim responded to questions from Councillors, who thanked him and the other IRP members for the time and effort they spent on the review.

Councillor Wood, seconded by Councillor Lewis, proposed:

"That Council sets a Councillors' Allowances Scheme according to the attached report; and accepts the recommendations of the Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP) in full; with an amendment to recommendation 7 to replace 'National Living Wage' with "Foundation Living Wage (currently £9.90 per hour, due to rise to £10.90 per hour in April 2023)"

There was a short debate and the proposition was clearly carried when put to the vote.

Resolved:

That Council sets a Councillors' Allowances Scheme according to the attached report; and accepts the recommendations of the Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP) in full; with an amendment to recommendation 7 to replace 'National Living Wage' with "Foundation Living Wage (currently £9.90 per hour, due to rise to £10.90 per hour in April 2023).

The revised Councillors' Allowances Scheme is attached to these minutes. The figures that have changed are highlighted.

113 APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR ELECT

The Chief Executive advised that he had contacted Councillor Heath, being the most senior Member of the City Council, who had indicated that she would be happy to accept the office of Mayor if offered by the Council, subject to her re-election in May 2023.

It was then moved by Councillor Geoff Knight and seconded by Councillor Hamilton-Cox:

"That, subject to her re-election in May 2023, Councillor Tricia Heath be invited to hold the office of Mayor of the City of Lancaster for the Municipal Year 2023/24."

A vote was taken on the motion which was clearly carried.

Resolved:

That, subject to her re-election in May 2023, Councillor Tricia Heath be invited to hold the office of Mayor of the City of Lancaster for the Municipal Year 2023/24.

114 APPOINTMENTS AND CHANGES TO COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

The Mayor reported the following changes to committee memberships which had been made since the last Council meeting on 14 December 2022.

Councillor Bryning to be replaced on the Planning Regulatory Committee by Councillor Hartley and Councillor Askari to take Councillor Hartley's place as a substitute member of that Committee.

Councillor Whitaker to replace Councillor Bryning on the Audit Committee.

Councillor Budden to be a substitute member of the Budget and Performance Panel.

No further changes were reported.

115 QUESTIONS UNDER COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 12

The Mayor advised that no questions had been received by the Chief Executive.

116 MINUTES OF CABINET

Council considered the Cabinet minutes of the meeting held on 25 October 2022.

Resolved:

That the minutes be noted.

117 BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK UPDATE 2023/24 - 2027/28

Councillor Whitehead, the Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources, presented a report updating Council on the Budget and Policy Framework 2023/24 – 2027/28. The report set out Cabinet's recommendations for a level of Council Tax for 2023/24.

She responded to questions from Councillors before proposing:

"That Council approves a City Council Tax increase of 2.99% to the Band D Council Tax £241.95 to £249.18), together with a year on year target of the maximum allowable unde Government's local referendum thresholds for future years."

Councillor Hamilton-Cox seconded the proposition and there was a lengthy debate before Mayor called for a recorded vote to be taken.

The votes were recorded as follows:

For the proposition: Councillors Anderton, Askari, Austen-Baker, Bannon, Biddulph, E Blaikie, Boyd-Power, Brookes, Budden, Dant, Dennison, Dowding, Frea, Gardiner, Gree Guilding, Hamilton-Cox, Hartley, Heath, Hunter, Jackson (Caroline) King, Knight (Geoff), Le Lewis, Maddocks, Matthews, Mills, Parr, Pattison, Pritchard, Redfern, Sinclair, Stub Thornberry, Whitaker, Whitehead, Wild, Wood, Yates and Young. (42) Against the proposition: None.

Abstentions: Councillors Anderson and Cleet (2)

Resolved:

That Council approves a City Council Tax increase of 2.99% to the Band D Council Tax £241.95 to £249.18), together with a year on year target of the maximum allowable unde Government's local referendum thresholds for future years.

Mayor

(The meeting finished at 8.10 p.m.)

PART 5

Councillors' Allowances Scheme

1.0 INTRODUCTION

- 1.1 The scheme outlined in this document was adopted following a full review by the Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP) in accordance with the Local Authorities (Members' Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003. The Panel carried out the review in 2022 and the Panel's recommendations were accepted by Council on 25th January 2023.
- 1.2 The next full review by the IRP will be carried out before the scheduled elections in 2027 for implementation no later than 1st May 2027.

2.0 BASIC ALLOWANCE

- 2.1 A basic allowance is to be paid to all Councillors, and is intended to recognise a time commitment expected of all Councillors, including such inevitable calls on their time as meetings with Officers and constituents and attendance at political group meetings. It is also intended to cover incidental costs such as the use of homes, private telephones and internet connections.
- 2.2 Each Councillor is entitled to £4,200 per annum, which will be paid monthly. The basic allowance will be increased year on year, in line with any Employee Pay Awards, unless the IRP recommends otherwise. Should the IRP recommend otherwise, it's recommendation will be put to the Council at the appropriate time.
- 2.3 In addition to the Basic Allowance, all Councillors will be offered a council laptop or similar device to enable them to access the Council network.
- 2.4 In order to comply with the requirements of Data Protection legislation, the Council pay for the registration of each Councillor under the Data Protection Act.

3.0 SPECIAL RESPONSIBILITY ALLOWANCE

- 1.1 A special responsibility allowance will be paid in addition to any entitlement to basic allowance for those Councillors who have significant responsibilities.
- 1.2 The Councillors receiving special responsibility allowance and the allowances payable are as follows:-

Lancaster City Council CONSTITUTION

Landau (III) Constitut (International Chaire (III)	644 204 20
Leader of the Council and Chair of the Cabinet	£11,281.20
Deputy Leader of the Council	£6,660.60
Cabinet Members	£5,640.60
Overview and Scrutiny Committee Chair	£4,227.90
Budget and Performance Panel Chair	£3,381.30
Planning Regulatory Committee Chair	£4,370.70
Licensing Committee Chair	£4,370.70
Licensing Sub-Committee Chairs	£443.70
Personnel Committee Chair	£3,335.40
Audit Committee Chair	£2,325.60
Appeals Committee Chair	£295.80
Standards Committee Chair	£1,234.20
Council Business Committee Chair	£1,428.00
Leader(s) of Opposition Group(s) (to be allocated to leaders of groups who	£5,640.60
are "in opposition", i.e who are not represented on Cabinet. The sum	
specified is to be divided between the leaders of any such groups which have	
four or more Councillors, in proportion to the size of their respective	
groups.)	
£1000 (maximum) allowance to be divided equally between serving	£1,000 max
'Champions' to a cap of £250 each Champion per annum. At time of	
introduction of this allowance there were two Champions (Veterans'	
Champion and Champion for Disabilities)	

- 3.3 No Councillor is entitled to more than one payment from the Scales identified above.
- 3.4 It will be for individual Councillors who would qualify for more than one special responsibility allowance to inform the Head of Democratic Services as to which allowance they would wish to be allocated, otherwise it will be assumed that the highest allowance is to be paid.

4.0 CARERS' ALLOWANCE

The Council will make reasonable payments for the reimbursement of the care of dependent relatives living with the Councillor. Full details of the Carers' Allowance Scheme are attached at **Appendix A.**

5.0 PART PAYMENTS

In the case of basic and special responsibility allowances, payment will only be made for the period during which a person performs the duties for which these allowances are payable. Where a Councillor (or co-optee) is suspended or partially suspended from his/her responsibilities or duties as a member of the Council, in accordance with Part III of the Local Government Act 2000 or regulations thereunder, the part of basic allowance or special responsibility allowance payable to him/her in respect of the period for which he/she is suspended or partially suspended may be withheld by the Council.

6.0 REPAYMENTS

Where payment of any allowance has already been made in respect of any period during which the Councillor concerned is suspended or partially suspended from his/her responsibilities or duties as a member of the Council in accordance with Part III of the Local Government Act 2000 or regulations made thereunder, or ceases to be a member of the Council or is in any other way not entitled to

Lancaster City Council Constitution

receive the allowance in respect of that period, the Councillor (or co-optee) shall repay to the Council on demand such part of the allowance as relates to any such period.

7.0 REVOCATION

Basic and special responsibility allowances will be paid automatically unless notice is received in writing from the Councillor concerned revoking the entitlement. All such notices should be delivered to the Head of Democratic Services who will inform payroll accordingly.

8.0 CLAIMS

- 8.1 Claims for travel and subsistence allowances should be submitted monthly after the end of the month in which the entitlement to the allowance arose and in any event no later than 3 months from that date. Claims must be made on the official claim form available from Democratic Services.
- 8.2 Completed claim forms should be forwarded to Democratic Services. Claims will be checked on receipt in Democratic Services and, when verified, forwarded to Financial Services for payment. Those received in Democratic Services by the 20th of a month will be paid on the 15th of the following month. Claims received in Democratic Services after the 20th cannot be guaranteed to be paid the following month.
- 8.3 Payments are made net of income tax, through the PAYE system used for salaried Officers. Bank details are, therefore, required for each Councillor. If a Councillor changes their bank details, the revised details should be provided to Democratic Services.

9.0 TRAVEL AND SUBSISTENCE ALLOWANCES

- 9.1 In addition to the Councillors' Allowances Scheme, travel and subsistence allowances are payable.
- 9.2 A full schedule of rates payable for travel and subsistence and eligible duties is attached at Appendix B, and the approved duties for which travel and subsistence allowances are payable are set out in **Annexes 1-2**.
- 9.3 For the purposes of the payment of travel expenses, all travel will be deemed to have commenced from the Councillor's current address or, if this is not within the administrative area of the Council, from the address through which the Councillor qualified to stand for election. However, for the purposes of attending one meeting of the Full Council only and during the summer vacation only, travel from an address within the UK mainland will be reimbursed to a Councillor who is registered as a full time student and who does not at the time of the meeting have an address within the administrative area of the Council. No subsistence or overnight allowances will be paid.

10.0 LGA ALLOWANCES

10.1 For those members of the Council who have accepted political appointments on the LGA the Council's policy for the payment of Carers Allowances and Travel and Subsistence Allowances is set out at **Appendix C**.

Lancaster City Council CONSTITUTION

11.0 PUBLICATION

11.1 The Council is required to publish details of the Councillors' Allowances Scheme and the total amounts received by each Councillor. The Head of Democratic Services is responsible for this matter.

12.0 MAYORAL AND DEPUTY MAYORAL EXPENSES

- 12.1 These expenses are paid to the Mayor and Deputy Mayor to reflect the additional expenditure that arises with these positions.
- 12.2 The level of Mayoral allowances will be:-

Mayor	£6,720
Deputy Mayor	£1,335

13.0 REVIEW OF SCHEME

- 13.1 The Independent Remuneration Panel will review the Scheme as and when requested, and in any event will undertake a full review before May 2027.
- 13.2 The Independent Remuneration Panel will monitor the Scheme.
- 13.3 Minor revisions are the responsibility of the Chief Executive in consultation with the Chair of the Independent Remuneration Panel.
- 13.4 Any queries or matters of clarification or determination as to Councillors' entitlement to any provisions of this Scheme shall be ultimately determined by the Chief Executive

14.0 QUERIES

14.1 Any specific queries regarding the entitlement to the Scheme should, in the first instance, be addressed to the Head of Democratic Services. Queries regarding claims and payments should be addressed to the Exchequer Payments Team in Financial Services.

Lancaster City Council CONSTITUTION

APPENDIX A

CARERS' ALLOWANCE SCHEME

1.0 Legality

a. The Scheme is established by the Council under the Local Authorities (Members Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003. The Carers' Allowance is payable in respect of the approved duties set out in **Annexes 1-3** of **Appendix B**. The scheme requires Councillors claiming the allowance to demonstrate and certify that carer expenses are actually and necessarily incurred in the conduct of their official duties.

2.0 Entitlement

- b. The Scheme provides for payments to be made to Councillors in respect of care for "dependent relatives" living with the Councillor. For the purposes of the scheme, "dependent relatives" are defined as:
 - (i) children aged 15 or under;
 - (ii) elderly relatives requiring full-time care; and
 - (iii) relatives with disabilities who require full-time care.
- c. The allowance is payable for care provided by carers registered by a Councillor with the Council (see paragraph 6. for details). In the case of (i) above, under no circumstances will the allowance be payable to another parent, the parent's spouse or partner. In the case of (ii) and (iii) above, under no circumstances will the allowance be payable in respect of care provided by a member of the Councillor's household.
- d. For meetings or duties within the Council's boundaries as set out in Annexes 1, 2 and 3, the allowance will be paid for the duration of the meeting or otherwise approved duty plus an allowance for up to one hour's travelling time before and after the meeting. For duties outside the Council's boundaries, the allowance will be paid for the duration of the duty plus the actual travelling time to and from the venue. In all instances, total time claimed should be rounded to the nearest half-hour.

3.0 Rates of Allowance

- e. The actual cost of care will be reimbursed, up to a maximum of the Foundation Living Wage (currently £9.90 per hour, due to rise to £10.90 per hour in April 2023), irrespective of the number of dependants.
- f. Where a dependent relative requires specialist professional care, the full cost of care will be allowed, with the prior written approval of the Head of Democratic Services see paragraph 6.0 (m).

4.0 Claims Procedures

- g. Councillors wishing to apply for Carers' Allowance must submit an application form to the Head of Democratic Services, declaring that:
 - claims made will only be made in respect of a named dependent relative (or

Part 5 – Councillors' Allowances Scheme Appendix A

Lancaster City Council Constitution

relatives) as defined in the scheme;

- (ii) claims will only be made in respect of the entitlements set out in 2.0 above;
- (iii) receipts will be provided in support of all claims; and
- (iv) where a specialist professional carer is to be engaged, that this is a necessary expense for which full reimbursement will be claimed.
- h. Councillors are required to notify Democratic Services in the event of their entitlement to Carers' Allowance ending.
- i. All claims will be processed by Financial Services through the Council's payroll system. In exceptional circumstances, and with the approval of the Chief Finance Officer, advance payments may be made in cash and subsequently adjusted through the payroll.

5.0 Taxation and National Insurance Contributions

- j. Advice from the Council's taxation consultants is that payments made under such a scheme will be subject to Income Tax and NIC's unless an arrangement can be reached with the Inland Revenue and dispensation not to tax obtained on the basis that the payments are reimbursement of costs actually and necessarily incurred.
- k. Because of the potential taxation and NIC implications, all payments must be processed through the Council's payroll system.

6.0 Administration

- I. The scheme is an integral element of the Councillors' Allowances Scheme, and responsibility for supervising, maintaining and reviewing the scheme is assumed by the Head of Democratic Services in conjunction with the Chief Executive and the Independent Remuneration Panel.
- m. Signed applications for registration of a carer are to be submitted by Councillors for approval by the Head of Democratic Services. Approved applications will be retained by Democratic Services and a copy forwarded to Financial Services.
- n. Claims for payment of the allowance should be submitted by Councillors to Financial Services on the revised standard Councillors' Allowances Forms. All claims must be supported by a signed pro-forma receipt (in the case of care provided by a non-professional carer) or a receipted official invoice in the case of a specialist carer. Financial Services will check all claims for approval of entitlement, accuracy and reasonableness of duties and times claimed, and submission of supporting receipts and invoices.
- o. Any queries regarding entitlement to the allowance, or individual claims, will be referred in the first instance to Democratic Services. Should a dispute arise as to the eligibility of a claim, this will be referred to the Chief Executive for decision. Should agreement not be reached the matter will then be referred to the Independent Remuneration Panel for arbitration.

7.0 Audit

Internal Audit will review the systems for payment of Councillors' Allowances on a cyclical basis and include sample testing of Councillors' Allowances transactions in annual probity programmes.

Lancaster City Council CONSTITUTION

APPENDIX B

TRAVEL AND SUBSISTENCE ALLOWANCES PAYABLE Travelling Allowances

(A) Public Transport (except taxis and aircraft)

- 1. The rate must not exceed the ordinary standard class fare or any available saver fare, but the Council may generally or specially determine to substitute first for standard class fare.
- 2. Supplementary allowance may be paid for expenses actually incurred on Pullman Car or a similar supplement, reservation of seats, deposit or portage of luggage and sleeping accommodation for overnight journeys, but in this last case the maximum overnight subsistence allowance is reduced by one-third.
- 3. All long distance rail journeys and sea-travel bookings must be made by Democratic Support on behalf of Councillors, to seek the most cost-effective deal within current parameters.
- 4. For journeys by public transport the cost of any private vehicle travel to and from the point of public transport may also be reimbursed at the rate set out in B below.
- 5. For journeys within the Council's administrative area valid receipts must be produced.
- 6. For journeys outside the Council's administrative area where the journey has been undertaken by car, the equivalent of a standard class rail fare as determined by Democratic Support on receipt of the claim shall be payable, subject to this being less than the payable rate set out in (B) below.

(B) Private Vehicle – for journeys within the City Council's administrative area:

- 1. By motor cycle 24p per mile and by motor car 45p per mile. (The rates payable are those recommended by the HM Revenue & Customs and will be increased in line with their guidance.)
- 2. Cycling/other non-motorised transport allowance (in all cases) 20p per mile
- 3. For journeys outside the Council's administrative area, the lower of the above mileage allowance or the relevant standard class rail fare will be paid. However the cost of any private vehicle travel to and from the point of public transport may also be reimbursed at the rates set out above.
- 4. Car parking charges may be reimbursed on production of a valid receipt. However, where a Councillor chooses to purchase a Councillor Car Parking Permit, the Council will not make any reimbursement towards the cost of parking within the District. Supplementary payments may be made for tolls and ferries actually incurred, on production of a valid receipt.

(C) Taxis and Hire Vehicles

1. Taxis: in cases of urgency or where there is no reasonably available public transport, the fare plus any reasonable gratuity paid. In other cases, the fare by appropriate public transport.

Lancaster City Council CONSTITUTION

2. Hire Vehicles: the rate appropriate if the Councillor had owned the vehicles, unless the Council approves additional amounts up to the actual hiring cost.

(D) Aircraft

- 1. The rate applicable to travel by appropriate alternative transport plus any amount of attendance or financial loss or subsistence allowance saved by travelling by air.
- 2. But if the Council generally or specially resolves that the saving in time is so substantial, then:
 - (a) the ordinary or available cheap fare by regular service; or
 - (b) where no such service is available or in the case of emergency, the fare actually paid.
- 3. The Chief Executive has discretion to authorise air travel.
- 4. All bookings must be made by Democratic Services on behalf of Councillors.

Subsistence Allowance

1. In case of an absence, other than an overnight absence from home, subsistence allowance is payable as follows:

Breakfast (when more than 4 hours away from normal place of residence)	
Councillors on approved duties who leave home before 7.00 a.m. to	
attend a location outside the Council's boundary, may claim breakfast	
expenses as follows -	
Breakfast, on production of a valid receipt	Up to £5.85
Breakfast, (in London), on production of a valid receipt	Up to £8.50
Breakfast, (in or out of London), where unable to produce a receipt	£3.20
Lunch (when more than 4 hours away from normal place of residence)	
Councillors on approved duties outside the Council's boundary from 11.45	
a.m. to 1.30 p.m. may claim lunch expenses as follows –	
Lunch, on production of a valid receipt	Up to £5.85
Lunch, (in London), on production of a valid receipt	Up to £8.50
Lunch, (in or out of London), where unable to produce a receipt	£3.20
Evening Meal (when more than 4 hours away from normal place of	
residence)	
Councillors on approved duties who have not returned home by 7.30 p.m.	
may claim an evening meal as follows –	
Evening meal, on production of a valid receipt	Up to £11.45
Evening meal, (in London), on production of a valid receipt	Up to £17.00
Evening meal, (in or out of London), where unable to produce a receipt	£5.85
In the case of an overnight absence -	£90.60
For an overnight absence in Central London	£103.40

Lancaster City Council CONSTITUTION

- 2. The value of free meals must be deducted from the allowance. Where main meals are taken on trains during which there is an entitlement to a day subsistence allowance, the reasonable cost of meals (including VAT) may be reimbursed in full. In such circumstances, reimbursement for the cost of a meal would replace the entitlement to the day subsistence allowance for the appropriate meal period.
- 3. All accommodation bookings should be made by Democratic Services.
- 4. Where pre-booked the cost of hotel meals will be paid by the Council.

Eligible Duties

When a Councillor is appointed to an outside body by Council, Cabinet or Overview and Scrutiny, attendance at those meetings is an approved duty eligible for claiming travel and subsistence allowances. Other approved duties are shown at Annexes 1 and 2.

Annex 1

Approved Duties - Meetings of the Council
Council
Committees established by Council and any sub-committees established by those Committees,
currently:
Personnel Committee
Audit Committee
Appraisal Panel
Appeals Committee
Licensing Committee
Licensing Sub-Committees
Planning Regulatory Committee
Scheduled Planning Briefings
Standards Committee
Standards Sub-Committees
Council Business Committee
Cabinet
Committees established by Cabinet
Advisory Groups established by Cabinet
Scheduled Cabinet Briefings
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Task Groups established by Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Budget and Performance Panel
Joint Committees:
Joint Committee for Revenues and Benefits

Lancaster City Council CONSTITUTION

Annex 2

Approved Duties - Other Duties

Attendance at Conferences/Seminars to which the Council or Cabinet has nominated a delegate

Media Receptions

Scheduled, Formal Meetings with Chief Executive/ Chief Officers

Mayoral and other public ceremonies/launches etc approved by the Council or Committee of the Council

Scheduled, Formal Meetings with Trade Unions

Scheduled, Formal Meetings of Cabinet / Overview and Scrutiny meetings / Working Groups

Notes:

The essential criteria for these, and any other such duties that may arise, is that they must be formally structured and diarised elements of Council business. The inclusion of other duties within this definition will be at the discretion of the Head of Democratic Services.